





THE BYTOWN & PRESCOTT 1854 - 1979
By

S.R. Elliot

One hundred and twenty five years ago the whistle of
a locomotive was heard for the first time in the little town we
now know as Ottawa. Getting that locomotive to Bytown had been
difficult. There were to be even more setbacks ahead for the
new line, But, by the end of 1854, its backers could congratu-
late themselves on a job done and look to a future which would
repay the labours of the past. In the years that followed, many
authors would write about the line. Their writings have left
unanswered a number of guestions. Why had the road been built?
Why was it built where it was? Did it really use wooden rails?
Why did an Ottawa Mayor call out the military to protect it?
Did it really shut down for two years because it had gone
broke? Wwhy did the C.P.R. take it over? Does it still exist?
Let us try to answer these questions for you.

By the mid-1850's Bytown was the supply depot for the
timber trade of the Upper Ottawa Valley. Its lumbermen cut the
white pine in the woods along its banks and up its feeder
streams, squared it, or merely trimmed off the branches, and
rolled it into the water. Once afloat, the timbers and loose
logs were linked together in cribs, which, grouped in large
rafts, were floated either to the riverside sawmills or to the
waiting sailing ships at Quebec.

At that time there were 15 sawnills in the Ottawa
Valley, two of them in Bytown. The lumber these mills cut was
either used locally or sent down the river by barge, bound for
the eastern United States via Lake Champlain and the Hudson
River. The barge owners had a monopoly. Their rates made it
difficult for Canadian lumber to compete in the U.S. market,
Besides, the river was frozen for five or six months of the
year and no lumber could be shipped. 'The sawnills could not
get logs and they too, closed. Thomas McKay, the Scottish born
contractor whose profits fram the Rideau Canal had grown to
include a group of mills at the Rideau Falls and the nearby
hame which was to become the residence of Canada's Governors
General, regarded both that barge-owners' monopoly and his
inability to operate his mills year-round as challenges. He
began to promote the idea of a railroad.

The town of Prescott, lying at the head of a chain of
rapids on the St. Lawrence River, was a major transshipment
point between the lake traffic and the river boats. Many
shippers found it cheaper to send freight to Bytown down the
St. Lawrence and up the Ottawa than to use the Rideau Canal.
In June, 1848, a group of Prescott businessmen discussed the



prospect of shipping freight through Prescott to the Ottawa
Valley and proposed the construction of a railroad to
Bytown. As the population of Prescott was then about 2,600,
it was obvious they needed help. They asked the businessmen
of Bytown to join them and to pay half the cost of a prelim-
inary survey and the legal costs of incorporating a new com-
pany. A Bytown group agreed, an application was prepared in
1849, and the charter was granted on May 10, 1850, for the
construction of the Bytown and Prescott Railway.

At that time, lines longer than 75 miles qualified
for a govermment subsidy. The Bytown & Prescott would only
be about 55 miles long, so the company had to fund itself,
It started by selling shares. It knew there was a limit to
the amount of spare cash available from individuals, so its
managers, the Provisional Committee, asked the Corporations
of Bytown and Prescott for help. These agreed, but to do so
reguired Parliament to authorize them tO raise taxes. Per-
mission was obtained and Bytown suoscribed to $60,000 worth
of shares; Prescott to $30,000 worth. Each town issued de-
bentures, which were to be paid for out of property taxes.
1t was anticipated that the share dividends by the railway
company would be more than enough to make the raising of
taxes to meet the costs of the debentures unnecessary.

On January 22, 1851, the company hired as engineer,
Walter Shanly, a Canadian who had just finished the western
end of the railroad line from Ogdensburg to Rouse's Point on
Lake Champlain. Shanly spent the next three months walking
the routes between Prescott and Ottawa, mostly on snowshoes,
througn the dense cedar swamps that covered much of that
region. The shortage of money dictated that the line had to
be as short and as cheap to build as possible. Both the
route he chose, and the details of the construction itself,
reflected those limitations.

Once the decision to take the line east of the
Rideau River had been made, the route to Bytown was relative-
ly straight forward. Kemptville was, even then, larger than
other nearby centres. There were swamps in Bdwardsburg Town—
ship and two river crossings, one over the South Nation River
near Spencerts (Spencerville), the other over the Rideau at
Bytown. Shanly would have to dig five cuts through ridges
that lay across his line. The biggest of these was at
Prescott and could not be avoided. One in Gloucester Town—
ship was largely of rock.,

A major opstacle was not topographical but politi-
cal. McKay wanted the railroad to come to Lot "O", a parcel
of land set aside as the site for miiitary -~ "Ordnance" =--
construction to protect the northern end of the Rideau Canal.



(It lay between the Rideau River and the bay downstream from
Nepean Point, north of the Mint and the old General Hospital).
Unused for its original purpose, much of Lot "O" had been
leased. McKay's mills were there, the road would lie outside
the then town boundary, arvd it would have access to the
Ottawa. But other Bytown shareholders wanted the railway to
go to the Canal Basin, roughly where the approaches to the
later Ottawa Central Station ran.

Both the President, John McKinnon, who was Thomas
McKay's son-in-law, and Walter Shanly, had to agree with
McKay, but it was left to Shanly to defend the choice 1in his
Report to the company. He offered three arguments., The first
two were valid. Building to the Canal would gain them nothing
as far as traffic was concerned. There was then no room for a
line. Canal tolls were an extra expense. He might have added
that the Canal closed during the winter. Secondly, for purely
technical reasons which he described at length, building to
the Basin would take longer and be a good deal more expensive.,
In his third argument, Shanly appealed to the emotions: if
they went to Lot "O", "Trains would show to advantage, reach—
ing their destination on a fair and noble plain, fronting on,
and in full view of, the noble Ottawa".

A later author has suggested the 1line should have
gone to the Chaudiere Falls area via LeBreton Flats. As it
happens, that is exactly where it should have gone, and 1is
exactly where it did go, too late, in 1871. But at the time
there was no industry at all at the Chaudiere Falls. The
mill-owners on the north shore had not supported the formation
of the company, and the company would have had to find more
money to build a bridge across the Ottawa River at that point
to get them to do so.

One may speculate as to the reasons why the company
did not get the backing it needed. Could McKay and McKinnon
have convinced these possible backers to support a railway
which would compete with their water—-borne trade and so de-
prive them of some immediate profit? That the line would have
resulted in long-term gain for all was problematical. This
was the first railway to be built into Bytown and its relia-
bility and charges were alike unknown. Did McKay even try to
sell his project? So far, this is a mystery which cannot be
resolved.,

There was a potential revenue from across the Ottawa,
and Shanly planned to put in a mechanical lift to bring traf-
fic from the Ottawa River to the railway terminus. But there
was no money to do so. And the traffic may not really have
been there anyway. The decision to build the line to Lot "O"
did reinforce the widely-held opinion that it was a creature of



Thomas McKay's. S$So, when the line was first built, almost
all the traffic was connected with the McKay complex. And
this was a pity. The road was truly a comunity asset and
came to be used as such. Had its initial support come from
a broader spectrum of that community it would have been more
financially viable.

Actual construction was straight-forward. Shanly's
staff had finished the final surveys and detailed estimates by
early July 1851, Shanly's Repert containing all these was in
the hands of the printers by the 26th. He had called for ten-
ders for route clearance contracts during the month. The
first contractor, French, Ferguson and Fraser, apparently of
Brockville, started clearing and ‘'grubbing" (removing roots
and rocks from the actual line) on September 2, 1851. The
formal opening of the work took place on October %, with a
parade from the company offices, which may have been at No. 3
Rideau Street, to the site of the new station. This was on
McTaggart Street, just off Sussex, a block north ofthe present
Boteler Street, then spelt Botelier. Here President McKinnon
delivered the usual address and "taking the spade, proceeded
to break the ground and tossed the first sod in first rate
style". On October 9, Howard and Goslin of Prescott began
work in the Big Cut, east of Fort Wellington, at Prescott.

That Big Cut was necessary 1in order to ease the
grade out of the shoreline at Prescott, the location of the
terminus which Shanly was bound by a company By-Law to serve.*
Without the soil-testing techniques of today, he had to take a
chance, but much of the work turned out to be easier than ex-
pected. The earth from the cut was disposed of by putting in
about 1000' of piline and filling in the area between it and
the shore, This gave the company about eight relatively cheap
acres on which to put the Prescott shops, terminus and whart.

One of the most difficult construction areas lay
just north of Prescott in Edwardsburg Township. Here the
route lay through swamp. Having walked it, Shanly was well
aware of the problems facing him. When he began he found the
only way to overcome them was to build a causeway — essential-
ly a long timber bridge - and to lay the rails on that. There
was three and a half miles of this construction and it is this
section that is the basis for the old legend that the line
came to Bytown on wooden rails. Later it was filled in with
earth and ballast but, throughout its life, the spring thaws
complicated the lives of the maintenance crews working north
of Prescott.

*  See Map 3.



The basic formation was nearly complete when Walter
Shanly presented his pregress report at the Annual General
Meeting in August, 1852, The rock work had been easier than
expected and he had saved some money both on this and on his
estimates for bridge construction. He had built a 120 foot
wharf on the Ottawa Just down the hill from the Bytown
station, which had cost $2,880. Though the work to that point
had cost the company $238,480, and they still had to spend
$55,300 to conplete the line, he was $56,000 below his origi~
nal estimates, Even that was too much, The company had been
able to raise $220,600 — on paper. By the time they had
taken off discounts, pledges made but not honoured, and delays
in payment, the net receipts totallied $161,400. They still
had to buy iron rails, locomotives, and rolling stock.

President John McKinnon went to  England with
$400,000 worth of First Mortgage bonds. With them he bought
5400 tons of rails, together with spikes and other track fit—
tings, for which he paid the Ebbw Vale Iron Company, a London-
based firm with mines and foundries in Wales, $232,800. The
rest of the bonds were left in London to be sold as opportuni—
ty presented, Secretary Robert Bell went to Boston where he
bought six locomotives from Hinkley & Drury (The Boston Loco-
motive Works). He also bought 131 cars. 8ix passeneer cars
were built by Mclean, Brainard & Co., of Ogdensburg, and an
unstated mix of freight cars were ordered from Harlan &
Hollingsworth, of Wilmington, Delaware. These cost $180,000;
$100,000 paid for in shares of the company, $80,000 through a
loan from the Commercial Rank at 8 per cent, a high interest
rate for the time.

President McKinnon reviewed the company's financial
position at same length at the 1853 General Meeting. The con-
cern still had to f£ind $277,764 — almost as much as they had
already spent —-- to finish construction. There was no more
money to be had locally. The Grand Trunk had offered to as—
sist by taking $400,000 worth of the B. & P.'s bonds, and
$400,000 worth of its shares at 25 per cent discount. In re-
turn, the company would buiid the road to G.T.R., standards at
its own expense. This would have raised the discount to about
33 per cent and resulted in loss of control. McKinnon had
refused the offer.

The only remalning source was a government agency -
the Municipal Loan Fund. Intended to support projects which
would benefit the Province, this agency required the municipal-
ities concerned to act as co-signers for the company which
wanted to borrow the money. Interest also was high; 6 per
cent plus a 2 per cent sinking fund. The Corporation of
Ottawa agreed t© back the railroad's note for $200,000,
Prescott one for $100,000. The two comunities toock a Jjoint
second mortgage on the railroad as security.



Even before the railroad had turned a wheel, the
Directors had saddled the company with an annual interest
burden of $47,150.20% 1In addition to this, it had been given
the right to 1issue promissory notes to pay for casual
purchases of goods and sexrvices, These no doubt eased the
cash-flow problem, but they were not very tightly controlled
and so added to the debt load. Granted, they did not pay
interest. The company was slow in redeeming them, which can—
not have contributed to its public image. They were widely
used in the local communities as an extra form of currency,
being exchanged at varying rates of discount. It is said
they ultimately were all redeemed. Some may have been ex—
changed for shares.

The rails arrived in Canada in two shipments, one
late in 1853 and the other in the spring of 1854. The com-
pany had them shipped up to Prescott as soon as navigation
openied. The first locomotive, "Oxford", an 0-4-0 tender
switcher, was delivered via the Northern R.R. of New York and
by barge through Ogdensburg, on May 19, 1854. Track had al-
ready been laid in the yard and she started pushing her train
of iron up the main line into the Big Cut the next day. This
rail was laid to the American gauge of 4' 8 1/2" rather than
the Provincial (Grand Trunk) gauge of 5'6",

The line reached Spencerville on June 21, Oxford
Station some time 1in July, and Kemptville on August 9.
Gloucester Station was in use on November 11, By December 7,
iron was reported at "Billing's sawmill, in Gloucester® 3 1/2
miles from Bytown. On December 25, a work train, generally
believed to have been powered by Locomotive No. 2, the "St.
Lawrence", reached Bytown. Scheduled service began on
December 29, probably behind Locomotive No. 3, the "Ottawa".
The line changed its name to "Ottawa & Prescott” (O. & P.} in
1855, following the change of name from Bytown to Ottawa.

There has been some controversy over the date the
Rideau bridge was completed. It was certainly in place be—
fore the official opening of the line on May 10, 1855. Buring
the spring floods, which seem to have peaked about April 19,
1855, the bridge shifted on its piers and crews had to use
tackles to stop it from being pushed downstream. Though the
press tried to minimize the danger by saying that the bridge
was not finished, it also said that service was "resumed" when
it reported on conditions after the floods had subsided.
Certainly the company had had plenty of time to build it. The
author considers that service "to Bytown" means just that,
and that the bridge was in use just as soon as iron was down
at the end of December, 1854.

*Original equotations were in sterling. Canadian Currency rates
were £1 = $4



The first construction facing the company after the
line had been taken over from the contractors, was to bring
the roadbed up to an adequate standard. Shanly had bridged
most of the streams and gulleys along the route with light
trestles and pile bridges. These were sufficiently strong to
bear a construction train and so get the road built, but were
really not strong enough, nor permanent enough, for regular
traffic. There was nearly 10,000 feet of this 1light bridge-
work; by January, 1859, about two-thirds of it had been re-
placed and work on it was continuing.

Traffic started well before the line was officially
open. In July, 1854, passenger vrevenues totalled $85.10.
Freight service began in August, earning a modest $54.15. By
the end of 1854, passenger revenue was $4,481.49, freight
$1,502.76 total $5,%04.25. By January 1, 1854, the line had
earned $51,885,56. 1Its outlay had been $49,153.79 which gave
a profit on operations of $2,731.77. Scwe of the outlay had
been on construction and hence a capital expense. Deducting
this gave an operating profit of about $12,560. But with an
annual debt load of $47,150, the company was already over
$70,000 in the red.

While some of that early passenger revenue came from
online passengers, soine came from people still not reached by
construction. When the iron reached Kemptville, arrangements
were made to handle passengers from Bytown and way points.,
Travellers could take a steamer up the Rideau Canal on
Tuesday, Wednesday, or Friday, get off at Beckett's Landing,
board a stage, and be taken into Kemptville in time to catch
the 3 p.m. train south. When the traveller got to Prescott,
he could take a steamer downr—yiver, or go across to Ogdensburg
and catch the Northern for Rouse's Point and the Champlain &
St. Lawrence to Montreal. Northbound passengers arrived in
Kaemptville at 10:45 a.m., in plenty of time to lunch and catch
the down-river steamer from Beckett's,

The service after November 1l required the passenger
to take a stage to Gloucester, where the train left at 7 a.m.
Service was offered from the Montreal Road from December 14,
This did two things: it ended the stagecoach service that had
been used to Gloucester and it introduced a new “railroad
time", Standard time did not come into official use until
November 1883. Each town had its own time. Railroads, which
had to work to a comnon time as scon as they connected with
other lines or, for that matter, connected two towns, in order
that schedules would work, had their own. In this case "rail-
road time" was a half hour ahead of "Bytown time®". When the
Grand Trunk completed its Montreal-Toronto line beyond Pres—
cott, the O. & P. became a connecting sexrvice and "Montreal
time® was introduced on it as the standard. This was four
minutes ahead of "Ottawa time".



The company's financial troubles became acute in
1858, The business recession in 1857 cut revenues., Figures
are incomplete, as indeed they were to be for most years,
while Robert Bell was President, but appear to have been be—
low the 1856 totals. Perhaps because of this slump, a Robert
lees, an Ottawa lawyer sued the line, claiming damages of
$20,489.53 on his holding's of the company's promissory
notes. These presumably had been paid him for legal services
either for regular clients or the company. However received,
he wanted real money. He won his case. Oddly, he 1s shown
some years later as representing the line in other litiga-
tion. There may indeed have been scme truth in the contem-
porary allegations that the whole thing was a put-up job.

The Ebbw Vale, which had yet to receive any inter—
est on its sale of iron, also sued. In the hearings before
the Court of Chancery, it came out that the bonds McKinnon
had left in England to be sold had, quite 1illegally, been
held by the Ebbw Vale. The court ordered them to be retur—
ned. And it placed the line in receivership, under a Mr.
C.W. Simpson.

That year, toc, the company fought with the Grand
Trunk. In 1856 the G.T.R. had been allowed to raise f 100,000
of which about half was to go to assist subsidiary lines like
the O. & P. The G.7.R. had gone to the Commercial Bank,
which the O. & P. had also not paid, paid off its third mort-
gage and accrued interest, and had taken over the lien on its
rolling stock. This was not legal. The money should have
been paid to the Board of the O. & P. which would have decid-
ed what to do with it. President Bell claimed that the money
was a government grant. The G.T.R. claimed it to be a normal
commercial transaction. Bell got the G.T.R. deal cancelled,
paid off the bank himself (about $112,000) and then used the
rolling stock, and perhaps some locomotives, as collateral
for the entire } 50,000 ($243,000) to which he was entitled
under the Grand Trunk Relief Act! This put him very much in
the G.T.R.'s power.

The construction of the new Parliament Buildings at
Ottawa, which began in 1861, brought new business to the line
but it was still not enough. The Ebbw Vale asked again for
money in 1862, and Bell agreed to pay them 30 per cent of the
gross revenues. This turned over scme $11,500 which did not
significantly reduce even the interest owed, 1let alone the
capital, and it left nothing for necessary maintenance. Pay-
ments stopped in October.

That September the O. & P. agreed, for a price, to
let the Grand Trunk lay a third (pbroad gauge) rail from
Prescott Junction one and a quarter miles south into the
Prescott Yard. There the company was to build a new wharf and



freight shed for G.T.R. use. The G.T.R. also made arrange-
ments to finance a train ferry, the "St. Lawrence", a 244-ton
vessel capable of carrying six cars and of performing 1light
icebreaking duties. She came into service between Prescott
and Ogdensburg in August 1863 and was condemned after a 1life
of hard service in 1873,

During the winter of 18e2/63, a power struggle deve-
loped within the company. Both factions tried to buy up a
majority of the shares (= votes) and so gain control. Some of
the deals were less than legal, and the matter was complicated
by the Secretary-Treasurer allegedly committing  irregu-
larities with respect to registration of some of the stock
transfers.,

This conflict came to a head at the AaAnnual General
Meeting on May 8, 1863, which was held at the Sussex ©Street
Station in Ottawa. The "New Board" tried to seat their can-
didate as Chairman. Bell, the 1legal Chairman, was shouted
down and eventually left the assembly, thereby officially
closing the meeting. Some of the "New Board"” then decided to
seize the company records, which were kept in another office
in the station. Someone broke dovn the dcor into that office,
the crowd swarmed throuwgh and literally threw the "0ld Board"
out of the building. Some minor personal injuries resulted,
the police were unable to control the crowd, and the Mayor,
Henry Friel, called out the local militia to protect the pro-
perty until tempers cooled. Bell suspended service for a
week, moving the locomotive and cars down the line to
Prescott. He also laid a number of charges against persons
connected with the assault but these were either withdrawn,
dismissed, or the defendants acquitted.

A further General Meeting was called in July. Bell
was Chairman. Present was Joseph Robinson, Chairman of the
Ebbw Vale Iron Company. He proposed a new Board, balancing
the claims of both factions, and adding to it two G.T.R. men,
two from the Great Western, and himself. One of the G.W.R.
men was Thomas Reynolds who had earlier been appointed
Receiver, and who now became Managing Director to run the line
while Bell attempted to sort out its financial affairs.

Bell tried to get money from Parliament, but he had
not prepared his case adequately. Both Ottawa and Prescott
opposed his draft legislation and he withdrew it. Almost im-
mediately the G.T.R. told the company that, as the line was in
a dangerous condition {through inadeguate maintenance as a ve-
sult of the 1862 payments to the Ebbw Vale), they would have
to protect their third mortgage by seizing the rolling stock
that was the collateral for it. On October 21, 1864 they did
so. Three locomotives, 49 freight cars and seven passenger and
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baggage cars were ordered by the Sherriff to be sold. The
G.T.R. bought them at auction for $301. But Ottawa and
Prescott had managed to get an injunction preventing the
G.T. from interfering with the company, and the sale was
voided. In the meantime, Bell had closed the 1line, except
for some minor freight traffic which ran only at night.

Negotiations between Bell, as the holder of the
charter permitting the line to operate; the Ebbw Vale, which
held the first mortgage; Mayor Dickinson of Ottawa, one of
Bell's major competitors, acting for the holders of the
second mortgage; and C.J. Brydges of the G.T.R., worked out
a tentative agreement. Bell reopened the line on Noverser
17. It is this closure, which had begun on October 14, that
later historians have interpreted as a "two-year gap in
operations”. The G.T.R. were to take over and operate the
line. It was to be broad-gauged, at C. & P. expense. The
G.T. closed its Prescott station and moved to the 0. & P.
station at Prescott Junction. At a meeting on January 17,
1865, Bell was out, replaced by Thomas Reynolds. A number of
minor changes followed.

Ottawa then submitted its own Relief Bill which,
when it was approved, gave the Ebbw Vale the opportunity to
foreclose, buying the line at its own price, $243,000, about
the price of the iron rails. This sale wiped out the mort~
gages held by the municipalities and voided the shares held
by the stockholders.

The line was reorganized as the St. Lawrence &
Ottawa in December 1867. Thomas Reynolds had bought in and
becane the new company's Managing Director and later a Vice
President.

He set to work to modernize the voad, replacing
bridges and improving 1its facilities. Construction on a
branch line to the Chaudiere began in late 1870 / early 1871.
This was completed, including a new bridge over the Rideau
River behind where Carleton University stands today, and a
swing bridge over the Canal below the present~day Experimen-—
tal Farm at Dow's Lake, into a new freight shed at Broad
Street and Wellington by December 14, 1871. It was too late.
The Canada Central had reached the Chaudiere a year earlier.
Though the CCR was broad gauge, and hence a feecder to the
Grand Trunk rather than a direct competitor for American
traffic, its location and its later construction up-river
toward Pembroke, made it a serious competitor.

Reynolds was conscicus of this threat and he attem-
pted to extend his own line. In 1872 he obtained a charter
to build to Pembroke and then northward, as well as a branch
to Aylmer. He also was active with a group which included the



Ebtow Vale, some of the prowmoters who later formed the
C.P.R., and some Ottawa and North Shore businessmen, in
obtaining a charter for a bridge company. This would have
built across the St. Lawrence, below Prescott. But there
was no money for any of these schemes.

With all this he ran a happy, reasonably efficient
line for some 15 years. It made money every year until 1883,
paying an average of just under $41,000 a year between 1870
and 1878 on its debts. Very much a part of its communities,
it ran frequent excursions, contributed to charities, and its
officers and men were popular. During the Fenian Rald crises
of 1869 and the early 1870's, its men formed their own militia
rifle company. The line reduced its fares for militiamen on
duty and on leave. Its craftsmen contributed to the mainten—
ance and repair of local armouries and drill halls.

Reynolds died June 28, 1880. With his death, the
Ebbw Vale lost not only the manager of one of its Canadian
investments but also a knowledgeable businessman with the ear
of Sir Johnp A. Macdonald and successive Governors-General. His
death came at a particularly bad time for the company. About
that time the C.P.R. Syndicate were seeking to expand their
eastern lines so as to develop feeders to their new transcon—
tinental line. The St. L. & O. was not of much direct use to
the C.P.R. which needed east-west links, but it did vrepresent
a potential route By which the Grand Trunk could reach the
national capital. It had therefore either to be bought or
neutralized.

The actual steps taken by the Syndicate to do this
are not entirely clear. Duncan Mclntyre, formerly with the
Canada Central, by then a Director of the C.P,R., bought most
of the St. L. & O. shares which had formed Reynolds' estate.
He then managed to have the line placed under the control of
Archer Baker, another ex-C.C.R, man, who had become General
Superintendant of the C.P.'s Eastern Division. In 1881 the
St., L. & O. had obtained permission to cross the C.C.R. at
grade in order that it might have access to the new bridge—
built across - -the Ottawa above the Chaudiere by the Quebec,
Montreal, Ottawa and Occidental in 188@. The company's appli-
cation to use that bridge was not approved until 1883.

The first few years of C.P. control were disastrous.
The St. L. & O. lost seven of its eleven locanotives to C.P.
service, all but four of its nine first class carriages, two
of its second class coaches, and two of its five baggaee cars.
This 1left it with barely enough passenger equipment to run
two trains a day each way. It had been running four. Freight
cars stayed numerically the same, but there is no way of tel-
ling how many actually remained on line, Prescott lost



many of its seasoned shop personnel and its floating grain
elevator. Far worse: early in 1882 a government inspector
condemned the wooden bridges on the Chaudiere Extension. It
took three years to get them rebuilt and the Extension re-
opened. Meanwhile the St. L. & O. was cut off fram its most
lucrative supplies of export traffic. With all this, it ran
at a loss on current account for the first time since apout
1865.

Prescott cried "foul", and certainly it seemed as
if the protest was valid. But, from the corporate viewpoint,
the run—down made sense. The C.P. had a genuine reguirement
for the St. L. & O.'s locomotives and rolling stock. There
was never enough motive power to haul both the construction
trains and the traffic which was building up. The decision
to let the bridges go was strictly economic. The C.P.R., was
short of money and was to remain so until after the North~
West Rebellion in 1885. There was just no money to spend on
minor lines. The move of the shop crews to other centres was
tied to a rationalization of service facilities in which
Prescott could not share because of its location. The move
of the grain elevator was part of a deliberate decision to
make Brockville a freight centre for the Region. A subse-
quent decision to set up a coal centre there was merely an
extension of that decision. This was probably more political
than economic. Brockville had been the headquarters of the
Canada Central. This headguarters had been moved to Ottawa.
The establishment of the freight terminal may have been a
quid Pro quo.

Despite appearances, there does not appear to have
been any move by the C.P.R. toward asset-stripping. The Ebbw
Vale was given quite generous terms in the lease which was
signed in 1884. Once the squeeze was over, rehabilitation
followed. The road had had steel rail put in replacing the
original iron. This program was completed. The wooden
bridges were replaced, probably with iron structures. Traf-
fic was restored. The coal business had not really suffered;
in 1908 it was enhanced. Prescott was made the centre for
all C.P. coal supplies for the Eastern Region. And, though
less apparent, a steady traffic in other commodities and 1in
passengers helped keep the St. Lawrence Section, later
Prescott Branch, alive.

Prescott yard was rebuilt between 1908 and 1910,
with a new roundhouse, redesigned trackage, a conveyor for
the coal storage system, and new dock facilities. New yards
were put in to serve the elevator at Johnstown and new coal
yards followed into the 1950's.



With the decline of coal as a major fuel, both for
buildings and for locomotives, the continuing use of the
Prescott complex became harder to justify. It became progres—
sively run down from the late 1960's until now all that is
left are fields with the remains of the coal piles, scme faint
traces in the long grass of where the tracks used to lie, some
rotting pilings and an Historical Sites plague telling the
story of the line. Up the line, Bedell, which had been Kempt-
ville Junction, no longer has a diamond to permit straight
through running. The Prescott end of the line has become, in
effect, a long industrial spur. The northern end of the sub-
division has become, for all practical purposes, a branch of
the old Ontario & Quebec. Few buildings remain along the
right-of~-way and perhaps it is symbolic that one which still
exists is an old, probably original, freight shed at Kempt-
ville., Moved across the track from 1ts original site, it
still rests on hand-hewn timbers, and traces of its earlier
yellow paint may be seen under the C.P. red.

Much change has taken place at Ottawa. The original
main line into Sussex Street station has been torn up and the
bridge, the yard and its buildings have gone, leaving only a
line of eroding piers, and a l.2-mile stub called the Ellwocod
Spur., The Chaudiere extension still exists, crossing the
Rideau on its familiar bridge, since extended by two extra
spans. A former trestle, now a nigh embankment, leads the
line into a gentle curve before it dives into a 1900' tunnel
under the site of the former swing bridge and then a long cut~
ting crossed by a number of bridges which carry streets to the
Hintonburg area. It emerges short of Wellington Street, enters
the site of the ©ld Ottawa West Yard, crosses over two sidings
about where the Railway Commissioners of 1881 told it it could
cross the Canada Central, and then passes over the Prince of
Wales Bridge into the Lachute Subdivision, Just as it was
given permission to do in 1883. But no longer is it as busy.
No longer do its yards echc to the bark of exhaust as a
switcher picks up a heavy cut of cars.

Vast changes have taken place in the railway environ-
ment of the region since the line was built. Some 1lines have
been relocated and many have been obliterated, What is perhaps
exceptional is that much of Walter Shanly's original line still
performs a useful role over 125 years after it was opened.



OTTAWA 1871 Historical Atlas, County of Carleton PAC C106957

Town of Prescott. ca., 1871 Historical Atlas, Leeds & Grenville Counties. PAC C106958
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PRIVATE

AND

SPECIAL RULES,

EXCLUSIVE USE AND GUIDANCE

EMPLOY &S,

COMMENCING AT 7.30 A. M.
MONDAY, 30th NOVIEMBIZIR, 1868,

MONTREAL TIME,

NOVEMBER 30th, 1868.) iNo. 6.

GOING NORTH.

PRESCOTT TO OTTAWA.

Distagee Distanes SEAINE, ;?1;,;_ e
O i
f ., MY, A e
(| Prescott..... RIS RYs e st blo(s o IR ot stos10151 o1 o s oA 2.10] 7.30
2 | Prescott JURCLIOD «ovvviveiviieiiiiiiecieneseiienecaranienens 2.25| 7.45
ki 9 i Bpencerville couie s vononnimie T st siosoini Gerpnamiors 2.43 | 8.10
73 163 || ORFOrd .cvvveis wvnvieeecii et 3.07 | 8.40
6 22} || Kewptville e .| 32201915
BT Il 8Ll OEmondonmm s e owesmgim tamssam s Sasegsesosasaess 3.45 | 9.45
6 | 87 | Rossiters oo 4.00 | 10.05
6 43 ! GLOUCESLET vvevvetcvieee ettt et e 4.15 | 10.25
11 B8 || OUONG. oeorive et 4.45 | 11.00
i i
GOING SOUTH.
OTTAWA TO PRESCOTT.
' .2 | NO. 4
)ilslctfrfée l?;futzlcc WAL B, Elgfp’s. MIXED
—' e - ———— e it e - PR ————— =
A. M. . Al
(TN T ———— S —— s P [0 1.00
11 11 ] GloUCESter. ot eii i ve e 8.26 | 1.40
I 8.40 | 2.00
6 23 05Z004C 11t vevieeaees et [ 8.55 | 2.20
85 | 313 || Kemptville...ooiioiiiiiiiiieii e | 9.15| 2.50
6 373 || Oxford ..coecon..e. | 9.30 | 807
73 45 Spencervillo 9.50 | 3.30
1 52 Prescott Junction......vviviveiviviersiiiiiiininenes 16.15 | 4.00
2 BL I RILECORY wuciuiinmsailan Gemae ierios b aGER ST LErr A 10,30 : 4.15

CROSSING STATIONS.—Nos. 1 and 4 cross at Oxford. Nos. 2 and 3 cross at Kemptville.

Norte 1.—Nos. 2 and 4 will havo Right of Track over all other Trains.

Nore 2.—Trains going South must approach Prescott' Junction with caution, and when lute must ask
orders at the Telegraph Office relative to the running of the Branch Train.
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SPECIAL RULES.

No. 1.--Tho heavy figares in Time Tablo show where T'rains aro to cross or pass each other.
No Truin must leave a Station where another Train of the same class is due, except when instruc-
tions in the Time Table give right of Track, or a Crossing Order is received in writing or by
Telegraph from the Superintendent or T'rain Dispatoher.

No. 2.—Mixed and Freight Trains when they cannot make their regular Crossing or Passing
Station on time must keep out of the way of Passenger Trains, and Freight Trains must keep
out of the way of Mixed Traius, and must be on the sidings ten minutesbefore Passenger Trains
are due.  Conductors will allow five minutes for variation in watches at all Crossing Stations, but
must not run upon this allowanoo.

No. 3.—When an Extra Engine or Special Train is to follow and haveright of Track over all
other Trains, a Red Flag by day and g Red Light by night, in addition to the usunal lights must be
shown in front of the Engine and ia the rear of the preceding T'rain, und this Red Sigual will abso-
lutely stop all Trains going in the contrary direction, until the Train or Engine for which the Red
Sigual was carricd bas arrived. When a T'rain is to follow not having right of Track, but keeping
outof the way of all Regular Trains, a White Flagby day, and a White Lightin addition to the
usual lights by night, must be shown in frout of the Iingine and in the rear of the precediog Train,
and the Cenductor must notity each Station Agentas well as the Conductor and Driver ofall Traiuos
who are to regard the Red or White Signal, asthe case may be, that 2 Train is following, whether
by day or night.

Norz.—In case of a Regular Train passing an Irregular one which has previously been
signulled by another I'rain, the Regular Train must carry a similar signal to that carried by
the preceding T'rain.  Regular Traing are those contained in the Time Table.

No. 4. No Ewpty Kngine niust be allowed to follow 2 Passenger Train, on a Red Signal.
Au Jngioeman in charge of an Kiwpty or Special Engine has the sawe responsibilities as the
Conductor of a Special T'rain, and will be governed by the same Rules. e must not run at
night witheut having a proper 1lead-Light and Red Tail Lamp exbibited.

No. 5.—Ne T'rain must Jeave or pass a Station or “turn out” before the tiwe nawmed in
the ‘Thwe Table.  On this point there is to be no discretion. .

No. 6.—Special Truins must be run between Stations by the time of Trains of thesame class
in the ‘Fime Table, and must be shunted at Stations at least ten minutes before any Regular Train
is due (o pass--and wust not pass Way Stations without the signal to do so has been given by the
Counductor.

No. 7.—As u precaution, all Conductors before leaving a Statien, shall ascertain from the
Ageut, Qperator, oy person in charge, whether there arcany orders or arrangements affeating the
running of their Traine, Afterleavingand while passing a Station, Conductors are to stand on the
platform of the lust Car, to sce if any siguals are made.

No. 8.—No Construction, Woed or sther Irregular Train, must leave a ¢ turnout’” in the
morning, unless sure that all the Night Trains have passed, and thoy must be oft the Main Line
fifteen minutes before any Regular or Signalled Train is due, and await its arrival unless duly
signalled or speeially ordered to the contrary.  Any person violating this Rule will be prosecut-
cd under the statute with the utmost rigor.

No 9.— Cenductors are held responsible for the movements of Trains, and for their being
worked in accordance with the regulations. In all casesof doubt or difficulty they arc to consult
the Engine Driver—safety to be the first considerution—DBoth are required to seo that their
watches are correct with time in Prescott Qffice, and to compare with Conductors and Drivers
of other Trains on meeting, also with clockgat Stations, and they must report to the Local Su-
perintendent all differences of time.

No. 10.—No Jngine or Train is to beullowed to leave or pass a Station within ten minutes
of another Train goingin the same direction, sand the Engine Driver must so regulate his speed
as to keep that time Lehind the preceding Train.

No. 11.—Station Agents are held responsible for the safety of the Switches, which must
always, excepting when a man is standing by, be kept locked for the Main Line.  They must
alwaysseethat the Trackis clear at the Station, andmust not allow Cars to be londed or unloaded
on the Main Line without autherity {rom the Superintendent.

Nore.—This is not intended to relicve Conductors and others frem the care of the Switehes
they may use: whoever throws o Switch on a Side Track must sce it back on the Main Ligg,

No. 12,—Tho Alarm Bell in the cab of the Jingine is on no account to be used for starting
Trains, its purpose being for stopping 2 Train in case of necessity.

SPECIAL RULES.

No. 13.—~Xogioemen of all Trainsare fo use the whole timo allpwed for running, exoepting
that whioh may be reqiured for doing the work at Stations or for crossing other Traine. Engine-
nen must endenvor, ag-far us possible, to keep up o uniform rate of speed, up aud down grades.
They must have full control over Mixed and Freight Trains when going down grades, and the
specd must not exesed fifteen miles an houy, Conduotors must see that the Train-mon apply
Brakes to-the roar Oare when galog down. gradas, so a8 to steady the Train, and keep it undor
proper control. All Traine tust passslowly and cautiously through Side Tiacks at a speed not
exceeding eight miles an hour.

No. 14,—During night journeys, or fozzy weather, Engincmon are toapproach all Stations
wijth great caution, eapeolally those at-WhieliTrainsshould be orossed, keeping « sharp look-out
Jor Sigmz'larand‘hnvi%% their Trains under sueh control, that if vecessary, they oan stop before
yeaching the Signals, - Whea Passenger and Mixed Train Tnginemen do not find Freight Traina
gt their proper, Uroasing Stations, they must lookout for them at each Station until erossed, and hdva
their ‘Y'rains under ful oonbr'ol, 8o agt stop ehort it nesessary, They must stop and make sure that
they are orossing the spesified 'P'rains. No verbal communication must bereccived or delivered by
Train-men or others while-Traios are in motion.

No. 18.—Station Agents und Boctionmen must take speoial care that the Track is clear for
Speocial Trains duly signclled.

No. 16.—~NoSpeoial Train or Empty Engine must leavea Station unless duly signallod, without
dircct authority from the SBuperintendent or Train Dispatoher.

No. 17.—Conduatars, Station Masters, and others, bofore acting on any Telegraph Messaga
ordering the movements of a Train, must always intimate to the scnder of Messago, the con-
strootion “which they ‘(the recipients) put-upon it, and await tho intimation that they have
understood it properly y apd tho stoppage of the Train having right of Track must iuvarisbly
be seoured bofore the Crosging Train is dispatchod or the Track considerced ta be clear.

No. 18.—Wheneves from- any- onusa, a Train is delayed between two Statlons, tho
Conductor must send 4 man: ‘hael 800 yards; or 16 Telegroph Poles, or to the summit of the
nearcst gragde, t0-wars apd adulsg, the tbl{xwing'l‘yaixt, tiking oaro thgt he is provided with Deto-
nating é{igmﬂn, in oasﬁ‘ha ardinary siguals fail,

No.: 19.—Te preveat loes of time the Oonductors aro to make theirstopsat Stations agshort as
possible. Ns Train isto beatarted from any 8tation until the Oonductor hes given the proper signal
for doing so.

N(§ 20.—Whenever it begomes necessary to back & I'rain to a Station, it must be dene with
great care, keeping at lenst one man with a'Red Flag or Red Light constantly in advgnee of the
Train, to warn any Train thet.may be approaching. Neither Conductor nor Driverhisauny right
to assume that there are na trains approaching.

No. 21.—Agents arid 8witobmen must losk out for and carcfully observe Signals capried by
Traing passingor stopping at their Stations, and notify Conductors and Drivers of other Trains
running in opposition to these Bignals.

No, 22.—Ou receipt af a Crossing Order, the ‘¢ Danger Signal”” must e at once exhibited,
80 08 to secure the stoppage of the Train. A

No. 23.—All Free 533503 must be strlotly examined. Trip-Passes are tobe punched and
collected with the Tiokets. ' Persons travelling without a proper Ticket or Pass must be charged
fare. If they are entitled to a frec passage, the money will bo refunded by tho Superinteadent.
Passes aro valid only for the persons mentionad in them. Conductors negleoting toenforce this
order will subject themselves to dismissal.

No. 24.—All Traius or Engincs must pass slowly and oautiously through Towns where the
Track crosses Publio Streets. The bell must be kept ringing until all such crossings have becn
passed.  Speed must not exceed 8 miles per hour.

425~ Should any Employd not fully understand the above Rules, it is his duty.ta apply to
the Superintendent for an explanation.

THOS, REYNOLDS, Managing Director.

T. S. DETLOR, Superintendent,
Prescett, Nov. 26th, 1§68.




TRAINS NEAR HURDMAN'S, Artist’s impression, 1879. Note differences in rolling stock. Historical Atlas, Carleton County.
PAC C106954
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SWING BRIDGE, RIDEAU CANAL, CHAUDIERE EXTENSION. 1879, Artist’s sketch, site of the present Experimental Farm,
Historical Atlas, Carleton County PAC Cl069368
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LOCOMOTIVE No. 3 “*OTTAWA", Hinkley & Drury, 1854 PAC C5288
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LOCOMOTIVE No. 8 “LADY LISGAR” Kemptville, 1879. Built by Taunton, 1870

PAC C5287

LOCOMOTIVE No. 1 “OXFORD?”, Portland, 1875. This is the second “Oxford”. renumbered to C.P.R. 328 in June. 1885. The
three pictures are representative of the three periods of the line’s motive power; original, augmentation, replacement. PAC C2605
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MCTAGGART STREET STATION, OTTAWA. Second station on the site. built ca. 1860. Photograph ca. 1940

OTTAWA'S FIRST UNION STATION, serving the Quebec, Montreal, Ottawa and Occidental, Canada Centraland, briefly, the St.
Lawrence & Ottawa. Built 1880, destroyed by fire April, 1900. Replaced by Broad Street Station. Original Photo damaged.
PAC C4848
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